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Foreword 

The research on the Youngs was made complicated by the succession of William 

Youngs in the line. When it was realised there could only have been one William 

Young, Senr and one William Young, Junr at any one time and that these were father 

and son, the search became simpler. In many of the old records the terms "Senr" 

and "Junr" indicated only "the elder" and "the younger" and could have referred to 

an uncle and his nephew or even unrelated men with the same name but of different 

generations. Fortunately, the name of William Young was not given to grandchildren, 

except in the line being followed, until the time of William Young IV and by this 

time such grandchildren no longer lived on Guilford Creek, making them easier to 

identify. 

There is no doubt but that the line being followed lived on Guilford Creek or 

nearby from circa 1700 to 1836, a period of time that spanned almost five gen-

enerations. Related Youngs continued to live in the area, up to modern times. 

Records show the Youngs were prominent in the Guilford community, awning large 

blocks of land, and being appointed to a number of county positions. Ars. Nora 

Miller Turman, in The Eastern Shore of Virginia (p. 144), refers to the journal of 

William Young, a storekeeper at Guilford from 1780 to 1802. This would have been 

William Young III, Major in the Accomack County Militia, who gave the land for the 

second tobacco warehouse at Guilford. When he died in 1802, his will directed that 

much of his property be sold to pay his debts. It seems likely these debts could 

have accumulated from unpaid balances he carried on his books. 

Neither is there any doubt but that all the present Youngs in Accomeck County, 

except possibly a few who have recently moved into the area, are related and can be 

tied into the line shown herein. Mr. Ralph Young, of Young's Meat Barn, traces his 

ancestors through his great-great-grandfather, Richard Young, who was a brother to 

David Young of the seventh generation. The grandfather of Mr. Russell J. Young, of 

Young's Old Shop at Mears, was George H. Young, son of Lewis A. Young. Lewis R. 



Young was a brother to Alfred D. Young, both sons of David Young. 

Not only did Young's Creek get its name from the family, but Katy Young's 

Branch, which runs through the northern part of Parksley, likely was named for 

Catherine Wessells Young, who married Gillet Young in 1822. 

The Young name has been found in old Somerset County, Maryland, records, the 

portion which became Worcester County in 1742. Descendants of the line still live 

in the area. A Daniel Young first appeared there circa 1720 and his name was 

included on the 1730 tax list. He died testate in 1771, at which time he had 

grandchildren who were grown. In tracing the Accomack County Youngs, no connection 

has been found to the Maryland Youngs. However, since many of the early settlers 

of Somerset County came from the Eastern Shore of Virginia, and, since Daniel 

Young had a son named Ezekiel Young, a name that appeared early in the Accomack 

County line, there could be a family connection. Samuel Young II, of Accomack 

County, died intestate. He could have had a fifth son who settled in Somerset 

County. Samuel Young II had a known son, Henry Young, who died intestate in 

Accomack County in 1698. He could have been the father of Daniel Young of Somer-

set County. 

The following report is fully documented through the first eight generations, 

showing the source of the record used in following the line. All documentation 

refers to Accomack County records, unless otherwise noted. The names of members 

of the ninth generation and most of their marriages have also been found in Acco-

mack County records. Some few of this generation could have been omitted, if born 

after 1880, since there is no Federal Census for 1890. Undocumented records of the 

ninth and tenth generations have been taken from family obituaru supplied by the 

family, from present-day family members, and from a family Bible belonging to the 

late Er. and Mrs. Milo T. Jester, now in the possession of Mrs. M. Carter Davis, Jr. 

Mrs. Winnie Davis of Mappsvillehas been especially helpful in giving family infor-

mation. 



A slight difference in birth dates, marriage ages, and tombstone readings 

will be noticed at times. This is normal, since census ages are only considered 

accurate within five years and marriage ages were often given incorrectly. 

Of special interest to the researcher was the selling of Bloxom land near 

Nelsonia in 1901, by Alfred D. Young, his wife, and others, to Asa J. Bundick. 

Asa J. Bundick was my maternal grandfather. 

Eary Frances Carey 
Star Route, Box 11 
New Church, VA 23415 

November 7, 1988 
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Early Youngs on the Eastern Shore of Virginia 

Dr. Ransom True's Biographical Dictionary of Virginia, 1607-1660, shows there 

were a number of Youngs, Younges or Yonges who immigrated to the Eastern Shore be-

fore the middle 1600s. The earliest Young appears to have been a Richard Young, 

who was deceased in Northampton County by 1642, leaving a son, Pharoah Young, and 

a widow, Jane Windly. Phareah Young received a land grant in 1642. He was likely 

the ancestor of Gawton Young, who died intestate in Northampton County in 1750, and 

of Henry Young, who died intestate in 1751. 

A Thomas Yonge was named as a headright in Northampton County in 1640, a William 

Young in 1641, and a John Young in 1642. A Samuel Young gave a deposition in North-

hampton County in 1650 and a Roger Young arrived there in 1655. Of these five men, 

only Samuel Young and John Young appear in later records. 

John Young was listed on the Accomack County tithable list in 1677 with one 

tithable. His name does not appear on a later list, but that of Joshua Young is 

given for the years 1695 and 1697. Joshua Young could have been a son of John 

Young, but nothing more has been found on either of these men. 



Samuel Young of Northampton County, Virginia 

The name of Samuel Young appears first in Northampton County records in the 

deposition of 28 March 1650 (North. Deeds, Wills, Orders 1645-1651, p. 206). In 

court he "Sayth that hee was up sick att ye house Rich: Gilbert nowe liveth, att 

ye tyme Thomas Albeist dyed   Samuel Young did not state his age in this 

deposition, as was usual, but it is safe to assume he was at least 

at the time, placing his birth circa 1629 or earlier. 

Samuel Young's name was given as a headright by Richard Allen 

1654, when Allen was granted 500 acres of 

transportation costs from England for ten 

96). Headrights could be accumulated for 

land "near Matcheponge, 

21 years of age 

on 21 November 

for paying the 

persons, called headrights Nugent, p.2 

future use and from his deposition, 

Samuel Young had been in Northampton County at least four years by 1654. 

On 24 January 1659, Samuel Young made a deed of gift to Samuel Arnold of a cow 

and calf (North.Wills, Deeds, Orders 1657-1666, p. 24). It can be reasoned that 

Samuel Young was unmarried in 1650, when he was sick at the home of Richard Gilbert, 

but by 1659 had a home of his own. Since gifts of this nature were usually to 

godchildren, Samuel Young would have become established in Northampton County by 

1659. 

Nothing more is found of Samuel Young in Northampton County records until 

1675, when he declined grand jury duty. It was ordered by the court that the 

sheriff "take him into custody and keep him until he take the oath" (North. Orders 

and Wills, 1674-1679, p. )46). Dr. Susie Ames in Studies of the Virginia Eastern 

Shore in the Seventeenth Century (p. 177), in speaking of this incident, says grand 

jury duty was unpopular with "the most capable Freeholders". This implies that 

only men who awned land were called for grand jury duty, and there had been no 

deed to Samuel Young, so perhaps he was declining on this point. 

While there is no evidence of Samuel Young's marriage or death in Northampton 
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County, it seems likely from the foregoing that he had married and lived out his 

life there. Neither do the records show that he had children. However, a North-

hampton County deed of 9 May 1679, in which Samuel Young gave a heifer to Eliz-

abeth Church, indicates this was a younger Samuel Young, likely son of the first 

Samuel (North. Deeds 1668-1680, p. 162). The first Samuel Young would have been 

too old at fifty plus to have been named a godfather. 
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Samuel Young II 

While no record has been found that states this Samuel Young was the son of 

Samuel Young of Northampton County, this appears to have been the case. North-

hampton County records show Samuel Youges, John Abbott and Thomas Church were 

joint tenents on land belonging to Capt. John Savage in Savage Neck in 1678, when 

Capt. Savage died and left this land to his daughter Grace and her husband, Dr. 

George Corbin (Whitelaw, p. 227). 

As has been stated, it is likely this Samuel Young was a young man, newly 

married in 1679, when he apparently was named as a godfather in Northampton County. 

His gift of a heifer to Elizabeth Church would have been to the daughter of his 

neighbor, Thomas Church. 

An Accomack County deed of 16 February 1679/80, states that Lawrence Robinson 

"late of ye County of Accomack, deceased, did for a valuable consideration bar-

gaine alien & Sell to me John Abbot and Samuel Young 700 acres of Land situate on 

back Creeke in ye County aforesaid it being conveyed and assured to us the said 

John Abbot & Samuel Young by deed from John Robinson ye son& heir of ye said 

Lawrence Robinson" (Wills & Deeds 1676-1690, p. 201). The deed from John Robinson 

was recorded at the same time (p. 204). Lawrence Robinson, his father, died in 

1673 (Whitelaw, p. 1118). Apparently, Samuel Young had bargained for land on Back 

Creek before 1673, but did not actually move there until 1680 or shortly thereafter. 

The first deed above is actually a division of 700 acres of this land between John 

Abbot and Samuel Young. Abbot got 400 acres and Young the southeastern 300 acres 

next to Francis Wharton's land on the north. Samuel Young's part included "the 

extension at the southewt corner" that can be located southeast of Parksley (White-

law, p,!, 1119, P. 1121, and map). 

Samuel Young was deceased, intestate, by 19 February 1694/5, when his son, 

another Samuel Young,exchanged 100 acres of his father's 300 acres near Parksley 
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with John Marvel, Junr for 100 peres of land and marsh "whereon William Jarman 

now dwells at back branch neare Hunting Creek" (Wills& Etc. 1692-1715, part 1, p. 

125). The first deed here states that Samuel Young's "Father-in-Law"(step-father) 

and his mother were living on the Robinson/Young land. On March 5, 1699, Samuel 

Young deeded William Hudon 50 acres (Wills & Etc. 1692-1715, part 1, p. 399) and, 

on 6 February 1706/7, Samuel Young deeded to Francis Young 100 acres, part of 300 

acres "which my father Samll Young bought of Lawrence Robinson, except ye thirds 

due Mary 'Hudson now lawful wife of William Hudson" (part 2, p. 234). On 1 December 

1724, Samuel Young deeded Francis Young another 100 acres "land whereon we both 

live", in exchance for 4000 pounds Tobacco in cash and "Francis to give Samuel 

Good & Sufficient maintainance for full termA time of his natural life .... & at 

his decease to give him Christian burial" (Wills & Etc. 1715-1729, part)., p. 578). 

In fact, it appears Samuel Young, the third, sold 350 acres of his father's land, 

when his father only owned 300 acres. Perhaps the 50 acres deeded to William 

Hudson in 1699 Was either a mortgage or a life estate. 

These deeds show that not only was this Samuel Young deceased by 1695 and that 

he left a son Samuel Young as his heir, but that he also left a widow, Mary Young, 

who had married William Hudson. 

The known children of the second Samuel Young were: 

1. Samuel Young, eldest son and heir, was born circa 1675 and died intestate 

after 1724 (date of last deed) and before 1733 (when his brother Francis died). He 

was apparently unmarried. 

2. William Young, born circa 1676. On 2 June 16970 Samuel Young sold to 

William Young, for 4500 pounds of Tobacco, 100 acres "on the south side of head 

I land Creek, part of land William Jarman bought of Coll John West" (Wills & Etc, 

1692-1715, part 1, p. 277). In June of 1698, William German gave William Young a 

quit claim to the same land (p. 355), saying that John Marvel, Jun" got the land 

from William German by serving him until he was twenty-one, that Marvel had sold 
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it to Samuel Young, who had sold to his brother William Young, who now owns it. 

See next section. 

3. Henry Young died intestate by 7 June 1698, when "his brother William Young" 

was named to administer his estate. William Hudson was security (Orders 1697-17031 

p. 29). Henry Young had two tithables in 1692, but there is no record of his 

having children. 

L. Francis Young died testate by 6 November 17333 when his will was recorded 

(Deeds Wills 1729-1739, p. 320). He left an unnamed wife, "to son John Young 50 

acres puithased of Francis Wharton & the orchard that my brother Samuel formerly 

lived on" and to sons Thomas Young and Ezekiel Young and "the rest of my children". 

His children were underage. Tabitha, the widow of Francis Young, married (2) by 

September 1734, Francis Stockley. This is shown by the division of Francis 

Young's estate presented to the court on that date (Wills & Etc. 1729-1737, p. 375) 

in which she received a portion of Young's estate along with his children: Tabitha. 

Young, Elizabeth Young, Wise Young, Thomas Young, Mary Young, and Ezekiel Young. 

Francis Young's widow died testate by 28 February 1758, as Tabitha Carruthers (Wills 

1757-1761, p. 39). She left son Ezekiel Young " to have all the estate paid to him 

which belonged to him out of the estate of his father, Francis Young", named daugh-

ter Mary Young and son John Young as executor. Tabitha, the widow of Robert Car-

ruthers, qualified to settle his estate cpn 29 January 1754, showing that Francis 

Young's widow had married (3) :Robert Carruthers. 
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William Young I 

As has been shown, William Young I, born circa 1676, bought 100 acres from 

his brother, Samuel Young, in 1697. It is likely he married around this time or 

soon thereafter. On the 3rd day of "8 ber" (October) 1699, he bought an additional 

tract of land and marsh on the south side of "Gilford° Creek from Robert Abbot 

c 1692-1715, part 1, p. 385). No acreage or consideration was given in 

the deed, but the land was called''"Iland ridge" and was near Jobs Island. The Quit 

Rents of Virginia for 1704, show William Young of Accomack County owning 144 acres. 

On 7 August 1700, one Elisabeth Thorn gave an indenture binding her daughter 

Ann, who was in her ninth year, to William Young for seven years four months (p.424). 

It can surely be assumed that William Young was married by this date and that his 

wife would be in charge of Ann Thorn. 

A deed of 6 January 1712/13 shows William Young buying 50 acres of marsh from 

William Darter (Wills & Etc. 1692-1715, part 3, p. 111). The deed places the marsh 

on the south side of France Creek, near land of Robert Justis and John Blocksom and 

adjoining 70 acres of land and marsh "ye said William Young bought of me". No deed 

has been found for this last 70 acres. 

William Young, Senr bought 10 acres for 650 pounds tobacco from William Hickman 

on 4 May 1730, land on Island Ridge (Deeds, Wills & Etc. 1729-1737, part 1, p. 82). 

He bought 45 acres on France Creek from William Hickman for 10 pounds on 29 October 

1736 (part 2, p. 50) and an additional 11 acres on Island Creek for 2 pounds 10 

shillings, from Woodman Bloxom on 29 December 1745 (Deeds Wills k Etc. 1737-17)41, 

P. 481). 

William Young served on the .Accomack County grP,nd jury on 3 Aay 1726 (Orders 

172)4-1731, p. 52). On 7 October 1729, he took a Negro boy named Robin to court to 

have his age judged. He was adjudged to be nine years old (Orders 1724-1731, P. 

171). 
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William Young sold no land, so, on 22 February 1745, when he wrote his will, 

he awned a total of 330 acres on both sides of Island Creek, which became Young's 

Creek in time, and north towards Guilford Creek. His will was proved and recorded 

on 26 June 1748, showing he was circa 75 years of age when he died (Wills & c 1743-

1749, P. 431). He left the use of his two older slaves, Robin and Judith, one-half 

the plantation "where I now live", with one-half his personal estate, to his wife 

Patience, during her widowhood. These slaves, his land and marshes, and personal 

property were then to be divided equally between his sons John Young and William 

Young, with a few exceptions. He left two slaves to daughter Ann Collins and at 

her death one was to go to "my grandson Thomas Jenkins". He gave each son two 

slaves. He left his home and orchard to son John Young. He signed his will with 

his mark. 

The known children of William Young I and his wife Patience (maiden name un-

known) were: 

1. John Young, born circa 1705, died testate by 27 December 1769, married 

circa 1730, Comfort  . In his will, John Young named his children as: John 

Young, George Young, Solomon Young, Anne Hinman, Patience Wessel's, and Tabitha 

Young (Wills & c 1767-1772, p. 37)4). He also had another daughter, Comfort, who 

married Jacob Fitchett and died testate in 1784, naming a brother as Solomon Young 

& c 1784-1787, p. 5). John Young left the land and home he had inherited 

from his father to his sons John and George. George Young sold his inheritance circa 

1790. Son John Young was listed by the 1800 Federal Census as over 45 years of age, 

living "hd Ys Ck" (at the head of Young's Creek). 

2. William Young II, born circa 1710. See next section. 

3. Arm Young, married   Collins. 

4. Young, married   Jenkins. Deceased by 1745. 
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Will of William Young I (Wills & c 1743-1749, p. 431) 
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William Young II 

William Young II, born circa 1710, was called William Young, Junr in Accomack 

County records until about the time his father died in 1748 and then William Young 

until 1769, near the time a son of the same name came of age. After 1769, William 

Young II was most often referred to as William Young Senr, until he died in 1781. 

He heired approximately 165 acres of land and marsh from his father in 1748. While 

there is no record of how his father's 330 acres were divided, later records indi-

cate William Young II owned the northern part, near Guilford Creek. 

William Young, Junr was appointed constable "in room of Southy Hew" on 5 Jan-

uary 1731/2 (Orders 1731-1736, p. 1)4). William Lucas was appointed in his place 

on 3 April 1734, for William Young, Junr was "Living out of his prescint" (Orders 

1731-1736, p. 119). This was around the time he married, so perhaps he moved from 

the Guilford area temporarily to his wife's land, land which was "on the Seaside". 

William Young II had married circa 1734, Margaret Dutton, the daughter of 

Elizabeth Dutton. Capt. George Hope, in his will of 1722, gave his servant Eliz-

abeth Dutton her freedom and 100 acres of land for her lifetime, specifyipg that 

after her death the land was to go to her daughter Margaret (Wills, Deeds & c 1715-

1729, part 1, p. 424). William Young and wife Margaret sold this land to Arthur 

Emmerson for 86 pounds on 28 June 1753 (Deeds 17)46-1757, p. 451). 

William Young, Juni. bought his first land, 50 acres, from Henry Grinalls for 

15 pounds on 27 January 1740/1 (Deeds 1737-17)46, p. 201). The deed placed the land 

"on Bayside on an Island called Jobs Island or hills choice". On 1 September 1744, 

William Young, Junr 1 son of William Young, bought 10 acres for 30 shillings from 

Henry Hickman, George Hickman, and Edward Hickman (Deeds 1737-17)46, P. 431), Will-

iam Young bought 100 acres of land and marsh on the south side of Hunting from Mark 

Ewell on 2 January 1754 for 20 pounds (Deeds 17)46-1757, p. 481). On 28 liugust 1764, 

William Young and Benjamin Parks bought "one undivided Water Grist Mill on a Branch 

of Back Creek" from Solomon Gladding for 65 pounds (Deeds 1757-1770, p. 318). 
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On 1 April 1767, William Young and Benjamin Parks petitioned the Accomack County 

Court that a road leading to their mill on the north side of Back Creek Branch may 

be made a Publick Road" (Orders 1767-1768, p. 41). The request was granted on 30 

September 1767 (p. 265). On 30 April 1771, William Young and wife Margaret sold 

Benjamin Parks his half of the "Water Grist Mill purchased of Solomon Gladding" 

for 50 pounds (Deeds 1770-1771, p. 32). By this time it is likely William Young II 

had built another water mill on his own property on Guilford Creek, for he owned 

one when he died. 

William Young, Senr bought 450 acres from George Scott on 6 January 1770, for 

450 pounds (Deeds 1757-1770, p. 672). On 10 February 1770, he and wife Margaret 

sold their son, William Young, Junr, 200 acres of this land on Guilford Creek, for 

233 pounds (p. 713). 

William Young II continued to buy and, with his wife Margaret, sell land in 

the Guilford area throughout his lifetime. At his death he would have been one of 

the larger landowners in the area. It is apparent he was an educated man for the 

times, for on each of the deeds and on his will, he signed his name, while his wife 

"made her mark". 

William Young, Senr wrote his will on 10 March 1781 and was deceased by 25 

April 1761, when it was recorded (Wills & c 1780-1784, p. 122). He named his wife 

as Margaret. He left to son William Young "all the land over the Gut where the Mill 

stands, that side next the Warehouse". He left son James the remaining part of his 

land "Where I now live". His wife was to have the use of his water mill during her 

widowhood and then it was to go to sons William, Ezekiel, and James. The same sons 

heired 50 acres of marsh on Guilford Creek. Son Thomas got 50 acres on France 

Creek. He named two other sons as Richard and George, and daughters as Mary Savage 

and Ann Savage. He also named four grandchildren: Peggy, Anna Bella and Scarburgh 

Stokely and William Young Burk. Son William Young was named executor. Witnesses 

were Parker Parradice, Peggy Hickman, and Robert Joins. 
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The known children of William Young II and his wife, Margaret Dutton Young, 

were: 

1. Richard Young, born circa 1740, oldest son, for named heir-at-law when his 

father's will was recorded. Richard Young married Ann Hastings, daughter of Rich-

ard Hastings (whitelaw, p. 1187). They had a daughter, Nancy Young, named as grand-

daughter by Scarburgh Hastings in her nuncupative will of 1795 (Wills & c 1794.-

1796, p. 293). Since this will was proved by Richard Young Senr and his wife Ann, 

they could have had a son named Richard Young. Indeed, the Accomack County per-

sonal property tax list of 1787, gives a Richard Young in St. George Parish with a 

male in his household aged between 16 and 21 years (p. 105). Richard Young,Senr 

died intestate by 30 December 1805 and his estate was administered to William Sey-

more, with Zorobabel Ames and James Ashby securities (Orders 1804-1805, p. 460). 

2. William Young III, born circa 1745. See next section. 

3. Ezekiel Young. Ezekiel Young, shipwright of Guilford, was unmarried on 

26 April 1785, when he sold the land his father had left him and his share of a 

water mill to Thomas Yorke (Deeds 1783-1788, p. 217). Ezekiel Young witnessed the 

will of George Savage in 1791 (Wills 1788-1794, p. 450) and likely died soon there-

after as his name does not appear in the 1800 Federal Census. 

L. James Young. James Young was also unmarried and a shipwright when he too 

sold his inheritance to Thomas Yorke on 26 April 1785 (Deeds 1783-1788, p. 215). 

James Young died intestate by 27 April 1791, when his estate was administered to 

his brother William Young (Orders 1790-1793, p. 161). 

5. George Hope Young. George Young married circa 1775, Comfort Baker, daugh-

ter of William Baker. He was deceased by 5 June 1798, when the lands of William 

Baker on one of the upper branches of Kegotank Creek" were sold to Levin Bloxorn, 

for Comfort is called widow of George Young in the deed (Deeds 1797-1800, p. 187). 

Apparently most of George Young's children moved to Northampton County, for the 

tombstone of George H. Young, "son of George and Comfort", (1780-1837) stands on 
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the Anderson Farm there, while another son, Thomas Young (1777-1735) is buried at 

Ingleside. One of this Thomas Young's sons, Edward J. Young (1814-1884) was a doc-

tor at Accomac for many years (see Whitelaw, p. 999). 

6. Thomas Young. Thomas Young was appointed Lieutenant in the Accomack County 

Militia on 30 July 1777 (Orders 1777-1780, p. 17). He bought 40 acres of land on 

the see side "joining Thomas Crippen lands" from his brother William Young on 31 

January 1787 for 150 pounds (Deeds 1783-1788, P. 391). He and wife Betty sold this 

land to Henry Fletcher on 26 July 1791, along with 87 acres of marsh at Jobs Island, 

stating the latter was bequeathed him by the will of William Young (Deeds 1788-

1793, p. 500). The name of Thomas Young appears on the Accomack County, Accomack 

for 1783 
Parish, personal property tax listAbut not on the 1800 Federal Census, so he ap-

parently died without an estate between 1791 and 1800. He had no males between 16 

and 21 years of age in his household in 1787 and if he had children, they are 

unknown. 

7. Ann Young. Ann Young married William Hope Savage, who died testate in 

1792, naming wife Ann, and his will being witnessed by William Young and Thomas 

Young (Wills 1788-1794, p. 451). 

8. Mary Young. Mary Young apparently married Griffin Savage, brother to 

William Hope Savage. 

9.  Young, married   Stokley. 

10. Young, married Burk. 

14 



Will of William Young II (Wills & c 1780-1784, p. 122) 
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William Young III 

William Young III, born circa 1745, like his father, was called William Young, 

Junr p until near the time of his father's death in 1781. He became plain William 

Young from circa 1775 to circa 1798, when his name 

records as William Young, Senr. When his children 

his death, the deed speaks of him as Major William 

appeared on Accomack County 

sold a part of his land, after 

Young. 

He bought his first land on 2 April 1768, 25 acres on Hunting Creek from John 

Lewis for 25 pounds (Deeds 1757•1770, p. 580). He sold this land to his brother, 

Richard Young, on 1 March 1770 for 35 pounds (p. 684). On 10 February 1770, William 

Young, Junr was deeded 200 acres on 

(p. 713). This was land his father 

450 acres for 450 pounds (p. 672). 

16 acres "land whereon said William 

20 pounds (Deeds 1770-.1777, p. 21). 

On 30 October 1770, William Young, Jun" gave an acre of his land on Guilford 

Creek for a new public warehouse for the inspection of tobacco (Orders 1770..•1773, 

p. 112). On 26 January 1774, William Young gave a bond, as he qualified as Assis-

tant Inspector of Tobacco "at Pitts and Young's Warehouse in this County" (Orders 

17741777, p. 18). His father, William Young, Senr amd James Henry were his secu-

rities. 

William Young, June, by Accomack County marriage bond of 28 November 1775/ 

married Elizabeth Crippen (MLB 1774-1806, p. 35). Elizabeth was the daughter of 

Robert Crippen, who died intestate by 25 January 1757. His widow, Leah Crippen, 

was appointed administratrix of his estate on that date (Orders 1753-1763, p. 171) 

and guardians for his orphans, Rachel, Sarah, and Betty, were named soon there-

after (p. 303). Robert Crippen's widow married (2) Thomas Hicknan. Leah Crippen 

Hickman was the daughter of Daniel Fookes, who died testate in 1740 (Wills 1737-

1743, p.237). Thomas Hickman and wife Leah sold land that had belonged to her 

Guilford Creek by his parents for 233 pounds 

had bought from George Scott the previous month, 

On 27 November 1770, William Young, June sold 

now lives" to Ephraim Vefsells (dessells) for 
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sister, Sarah Fookes, on 30 September 1761 (Deeds 1757-177D p. 189). On 31 

January 1787, William Young and wife Betty sold, to his brother Thomas Young, 40 

acres for 150 pounds (Deeds 1783-1788, p. 391). This was Crippen land on the sea 

side that Betty/Elizabeth had inherited. 

At the Accomack County Court of 29 November 1779, it was "Ordered that the 

following Persons be recommended to his excellency the Governor as fitting persons 

to be appointed officers of the Militia, to-wit: William Selby Coll, for the upper 

batallion; Selby Simpson Lieut Coll, for the same& William Young Major" (Orders 

1777-1780, p. 431). Richard Justice was named Captain to William Young's company* 

On 11 March 1797, William Young mortgaged 200 acres of land to Henry Fletcher 

for 65 pounds 6 shillings (Deeds 1787-1800, p. 72), saying the land was on the south 

side of Guilford Creek. On 14 July 1798, William Young, Senr, planter, and wife 

Betty sold 16 acres land and marsh on Guilford Creek to George C. Hinman for 71 

pounds 3 shillings 9 pence (p. 252) and on 6 December 1798, they sold 22 acres 

"near head of Jobs Island Creek" to Ephraim and John Vefsels for 90 pounds (p. 265). 

The records do not show William Young III buying other land after his purchase 

of the Scott land in 1770. Apparently he inherited the balance of this tract, 250 

acres, from his father in 1781 ("all the land over the Gut where the Mill stands, 

that side next the Warehouse"), for ne owned 400 acres in 1800 (Ebb and Flow, p.202). 

He had sold circa 54 acres by this time. 

Between 1800 and the time he wrote his will, William Young Senr sold a total 

of 124 acres of land'(Deeds 1800-180)3, PP. 74, 80, 81, 337, 392 and District Court 

Deeds 1800-1806, pp. 40, 179, 180, 2 46). 46 acres were sold to Dennis Clayton, 

25 acres to son William Young, Junr and 26 acres with a house to son Robert Young. 

His wife had died sometime between 20 August 1800, when she joined him in signing 

a deed, and 1 February 1802, when he signed alone. 

William Young, Senr made his will on 26 February 1802 and it was recorded on 

27 December of that year (Wills 1800-180)3, p. 518). He directed that part of his 
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land be sold to "help pay debts" and that the bonds of William Young, Jun', Robert 

Young and Dennis Clayton "go to help pay my debts". All the remainder of his land 

and marsh was to be equally divided between four sons: James Young, Samuel Young, 

Thomas Young, and Isaac Young. Daughter Leah Young heired a slave named Ned. His 

other two slaves were to be sold and the money used to pay debts, but if any money 

remained, it was to go to his daughter Sarah Young and his niece Peggy Young. He 

left beds to sons William Young and Robert Young and made them executors. William 

Young, Sent' signed his name to his will but there were no witnesses. Crippen Taylor, 

Thomas Hickman and Solomon Ewell appeared in court and attested that they were 

familiar with his writing and thereby proved the will. The inventory of William 

Young was filed on 25 June 1804 (Wills 1804-1806, p.108). It consisted of personal 

property with a total value of 100 pounds 2 shillings 10 pence. An audit followed 

(p. 110), giving the names and amounts of money he owed and showing his debts were 

fully paid. 

On 11 February 1809, Samuel Young and Thomas Young, both of the City of Wash-

ington) David James and Leah, his wife; William Young and Sally, his wife, of 

Accomack County, sold to their brother, Robert Young, 3 1/4 acres for $158.25, 

"late the property of Major William Young, deceased, near Guilford warehouse" 

(Deeds 1810-1812, p. 80) and on 5 March 1810, brother Isaac sold to Robert Young 

his rights to the same property for 32 pounds 4 shillings (p. 152). 

The children of William Young III and his wife, Elizabeth Crippen Young, were: 

1. William Young IV, born circa 1776. See next section. 

2. Robert Young, born circa 1778, married by bond of 22 January 1800, Rachel 

Reg (MLB 1774-1806, p. 35), died testate by 22 September 1848 (Wills SC 1831-1855, 

p. 104). See chart III for descendants. 

3. Sarah Young, deceased by 1809, when brothers and sisters sold father's land. 

4. Leah Young, married 1807, David James (MLB 1806-1832, p. 50). David James 

was deceased by 16 August 1817 (Deeds 1817-1818, p. 318). 
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5. James Young, deceased by 1809, when brothers and sisters sold father's land. 

6. Samuel Young, in Washington in 1809, when he, with brothers and sisters 

sold father's land. 

7. Thomas Young, also in Washington in 1809. 

8. Isaac Young, died testate in 1826, apparently unmarried, as he left his 

entire estate to his sister Leah James's children (Wills 1826...1828, p. 180). 
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Will of William Young III (Wills 1800-1804, p. 518) 
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William Young IV 

William Young IV was born circa 1776. The 1800 Federal Census for Accomack 

County, Accomack Parish, lists him as William Young Jr., aged 16 to 26 years, with 

a wife of the same age. Apparently they had a son, for a male under ten years was 

in the household, PS was another male aged 26 to 45 years. The 1810 census gives 

William Young's age as 26 to 45 years. In 1820, he was still 26 to 45 and in 1830, 

his age was given as 50 to 60 years, when he would have been circa 54. William 

Young was not listed by the 1840 census, for he died in 1834, but his widow, Sarah 

Young, aged 50 to 60 , was the head of a household. Sally Young was listed by the 

1850 census as aged 69 years, living in the household of her widowed daughter, 

Sarah Wessells. 

There is no record of the marriage of William Young IV. It is obvious he had 

married by 1800 and, from census records and deeds, it is known his wife was 

named Sarah/Sally. It is likely she was a Hinman, for on 24 November 1834, it was 

recorded that Mary Mason and Sally Young were the only heirs of Bundick Hinman, 

a soldier in the Virginia Continental Line in the Revolutionary War (Orders 1832-

1836, p. 385). 

While he heired no land, it has been shown that William Young IV bought 25 

acres on Guilford Creek from his father in 1800, for which he gave a bond (Deeds 

1800-1804, p. 80). The deed stated this land joined the line of Richard Taylor, 

as far as Jeremiah Mason's land, and continued to "a Pine that stands by the 

Warehouse Road". William Young bought 11 acres from his brother, Robert Young, on 

11 February 1809 (Deeds 1810-1812, p. 79) and 3 more acres from brother Isaac on 

5 March 1810 (Deeds 1810-1812, p. 152). On 19 July 1817, William Young bought 50 

acres from Richard Taylor and wife Peggy, for 4250 (Deeds 1817-1818, p. 179). 

Finally, on 2 September 1819, William Young bought 3 acres from Erastus Poulson for 

$55 (Deeds 1818-1819, p. )401). 
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William Young wrote his will on 27 February 1834 and it was recorded on 28 

April 1834 (Wills 1828-1846, p. 157). He directed that his executor sell the south 

end of his land adjoining John Vefsells to pay all debts, retaining 10 square 

yards "at my grave yard for a family burial ground". He loaned the balance of his 

land and personal estate '('except my tools") to his wife Sally, to raise his 

younger children and to provide a home for his daughters until his son Isaac became 

21 years of age. The balance of his land was then to be divided between daughters, 

Mary Young, Sally Young, Hannah Young, Ann Young, Elizabeth Young, and son Isaac 

Young. He left his carpenter tools to be divided equally between his sons Richard 

Young and David Young. He named Thorogood Taylor as executor. Witnesses were 

George Clayton, Jr., Dennis Clayton and Erastus Poulson. 

As has been stated, Sarah Young, widow of William Young IV, was listed as 

head of a household in the 1840 census. There were no males in her household, but 

two daughters, aged 15 to 20 years. All but these two daughters had married and 

her youngest son Isaac was probably deceased by 1840. On 9 June 1843, a deed from 

David Young "to my mother Sally Young, widow of William Young, deceased" transferred 

to her, for *20, "all my right to Lands formerly belonging to my father William 

Young, deceased, that fell to me by the Death of my Brother Isaac Young" (Deeds 

1844-1846, p. 522). On 4 November 1845, Sally Young bought son Richard Young's and 

daughter Elizabeth Brodwater's shares of son Isaac's land (p. 125). She joined her 

other daughters and their husbands in selling 18 1/4 acres to son-in-law, Thomas 

Hinman, on 3 February 1846 (p. 598). She likely went to live with her daughter at 

this time, or else her daughter Sarah Wessells had heired the family home. 

The children of William Young IV and his wife Sarah/Sally Young were: 

1. Richard Young, born circa, according to the 1850 census. Richard Young 

(of William) married Mary Fisher, daughter of William Fisher, by marriage bond of 

23 February 1830 (MLB 1806-1832, p. 150). Richard Young of William, aged 30 to 

40 years, had two males in his househod in 1840, one under 5 years and one 5 to 
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10 years. Besides his wife, there was a female in the household aged 10 to 15 

years. The 1850 census shows Richard Young, a 45-year-old carpenter, with wife 

Polly, 48, snd three sons: John, aged 18 years; George, 10 years old; and Isaac, 

aged 5. In 1870, the census shows Richard Young as a 66-year-old carpenter, with 

wife Polly aged 70 years. Their sons were no longer living with them. Polly Young 

died on 10 July 1872, at 65 years of age, according to the report turned in by her 

husband (Reg. of Deaths 1856-1896, p. 70). In the 1880 census, Richard Young, 72, 

a widowed house carpenter, ns shown living alone. He died on 1 March 1888, at 81 

years of age (Peninsula Enterprisel10 March 1888 issue). See chart IV for descendants. 

2. David Young, born circa 1810, according to the 1850 census. See next 

section. 

3. Mary Young, born circa 1815, married 21 October 1837, Thomas Hinman (Mar. 

Reg. #1, p. 58). 

4. Sarah Young, born circa 1817, married 4 March 1837, Ephraim Wessells, son 

of Ephraim (Mar. Reg. #1, p. 58). 

5. Hannah Young, born circa 1820, married 19 December 1840, George Clayton 

(Mar. Reg #1, p. 64). 

6. Ann Young, born circa 1821, married by bond of 25 January 1841, William 

Taylor of Charles (MLB 1832-1841, P. 34). 

7. Elizabeth Young, born circa 1825, married circa 1845, John E. Brodwater. 

8. Isaac Young, who was under 21 in 1832. Deceased, unmarried by 1843. 
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Will of William Young IV (Wills 1828-1846, p. 157) 
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David Young 

David Young, born circa 1810 according to the 1850 Federal Census, was the 

second son of William Young and his wife Sarah/Sally Young. It is likely he was 

trained as a carpenter, since his father left him half his carpentry tools and his 

brother Richard Young was a carpenter. However, the census record gives his oc-

cupation as a farmer. 

David Young married Margaret Wessells by marriage licence bond of 13 August 

1832 MB 1832-1841, P. 39). He was not listed as head of a household in the 1840 

census, suggesting he and his family were living with his wife's people, since 

there were no males in his mother's household in that year. 

In 1850, David Young's household (#1054), was recorded in Accomack Parish, 

near William Northam, Sr. (#1051), Jaeob.Bird (#1052), William Groton (1f1055), and 

Rachel Trader (#1056), indicating he was living somewhere south of the intersection 

of routes 687 and 691 (southeast of Hallwood, locally called Groton Town), along 

the road toward Wessells Cemetery. Besides his wife Margaret, aged 38, the house-

hold consisted of three sons: Benjamin Young, aged 15; William Young, aged 12; and 

Lewis Young, aged 9. 

David Young heired no land from his father. The only deed bearing his name is 

the one of 9 June 1843, in which he sold his share of his brother Isaac's land to 

his mother. 

David Young wrote his will on 22 December 1852 and it was recorded on 28 March 

1853 (Wills 1846-1882, p. 141). He left his wife Margaret his entire estate "for the 

purpose of raising my young children" and named daughter Mary Summers and sons, 

Benjamin, William, Lewis, and Alfred. He appointed friend Littleton A. Hinman as 

executor. Witnesses were Southy T. Lucas and Henry Mears. 

David Young's widow had remarried by 26 July 1853, when "Margaret Northam, late 

Young", renounced all benefits of her late husband's will Orders 1551-1854, p.436). 
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At the same time, Elijah Northam was appointed guardian to Alfred D. Young, orphan 

of David Young. While no marriage record has been found, this order indicates that 

Elijah Northam was Margaret Wessella Young's second husband. 

The 1860 census shows Margaret Young, aged 48, as head of household #1327/1323. 

In her household were: William T. Young, aged 21; Louis Young, aged 17; Alfred 

Young, aged 10 years; and Emma Northam, aged 12 years. Elijah Northam was ap-

parently deceased by 1860, andAcensus enumerator assumed the Young boy's mother 

was also a Young. 

The children of David Young and his wife, Margaret Wessells Young, were: 

1. Mary Young, born 16 January 1833, died 5 July 1873, Married Richard Sommers 

by bond of 25 March 1850 (MLB 1747-1850, p. 14). Her tombstone stands beside that 

of her husband, Richard R. Somers (1822-1871), on the old Somers homestead, on the 

south side of the road to Muddy Creek (route 682), back at the edge of the woods. 

2. Benjamin Y. Young, born 1836, died 1927, married 29 March 1855, Elizabeth 

Northam, at herfather Elijah Northam's home (Mar. Reg. #3, p. 3). The marriage 

record says he was born at Guilford. His tombstone and that of his wife Betsy 

Young (1835-191)), stand in Bloxom's Cemetery, along the road just south of Bethel 

Church. The 1880 census shows they had three daughters: Mary W. Young, born circa 

1864; Elizabeth J. Young, born circa 1868; and Ida S. Young, born circa 1874. 

3. William T. Youngs born 1840 (tombstone at Bloxom's Cemetery), died 24 

March 1889 of consumption (Reg. of Deaths 1856-1896). No marriage record has been 

found, but his wife, Mary W. Young (1844-1938), is buried beside him. In the 1770 

census, William Young is listed as a 30-year-old sailor, with wife Mary and daugh-

ters Martha (4 years) and Ida (I year). This would indicate he married circa 1865. 

The 1880 census shows other children as: William K. Young, born circa 1871; Effa A. 

Young, born circa 1873; Alice L. Young, born circa 1875; and Sarah L. Young, born 

circa 1878. Son William K. Young (1871-1939) is buried in Bloxom's Cemetery. 

William T. Young served as a Confederate soldier (sailor?) in the Civil War. 
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L. Lewis R. Young, born circa 1842, died 25 February 1884 of consumption 

(Reg. of Deaths). Lewis Young married Mary Bloxom by a Somerset County, Naryland, 

marriage licence dated 16 February 1866 (Som. Mar. Reg. 1796-1871, p. 169). He 

was listed in the 1870 census as a sailor, with two daughters: Emma, born circa 

1868; and Jane, born circa 1869. By 1880, a son George Young had been born circa 

1871, a daughter Mary in 1876, daughter Clara in 1888 and an unnamed son in 1879. 

No tombstone has been found for Lewis R. Young. His wife, Mary F. Young (1850-

1939) is buried in Bloxom's Cemetery, as are two of their children: George H. 

Young (1870-1917) and Lewis Young (1879-1954). Lewis R. Young also served in the 

Confederate forces during the Civil War. 

5. Alfred David Young, born 1851. See next section. 
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Will of David Young (Wills 1846-1882, p. 141) 

I David Young of Acoomaok County Virginia do make and oonstitute this instrument of 

writing to bossy last Will ml Testament in manner and form following to wit 

I give to my wife Margaret Young.during her life tins or marriage the whole of my ',tette 

after paying my just debts, for the purpose of raising my young children, and at her 

death or marriage, whatevet is remaining to be squally divided among my thlidron to wit 

Mary Summers Benjamin Young William Young Lewis Young Alfred Young So that each may 

share alike. 

I nominate and appoint my. friend Littleton A. Hinman sole eiieutor to this my' last Will 

and Testament. as witness my hand arieseal th1s-22d. day of'Deosio-cr A. b. 1352: 

Witness . 

. Davidhli Young Southey TnLuoasl , 

mirk 
Henry Mears, ` 

At a Court held fo%ActoomaCk.lgountypon the, 26th_dKrof WssCh 1353.-

This lmOIRJA.Jmnd,feetement of DOM Young dud. ), was y rovod by „.1, Oaths of 
( 4' 

Southeylv Woes andleTirellear,S, witnesses thereltos. and .ordpriodcto..bo roloYifidkr 
„ - . — • 
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Alfred David Young 

Alfred David Young, youngest son of David Young and his wife Margaret Wessells 

Young, was born in 1851, according to his tombstone at Groton's Cemetery. He could 

not have been over two years of age when his father died. His name first appears 

in Accomack County records on 26 July 1853, when Elijah Northam was appointed his 

guardian. 

The 1860 census lists Alfred Young as a 10-year old boy in his mother's house-

hold. In 1870, he was shown as 18 years, a farm laborer, living in the household 

was 
of his brother, William Young. By 1880, he had married andAlisted as head of a 

household in Eetompkin District, a 28-year-old farmer. His wife, Susan J. Young, 

was also 28 and there were three children in the household: David W. Young, aged 4; 

John T., 2 years; and Maggie L., I year. 

Alfred D. Young, 24, had married Susan Jane Bloxom, 23, on 29 November 1874, 

at Temperanceville (Nar. Reg. #3, p. 41). The marriage licence states he was the 

son of David and Margaret Young and she the daughter of John J. and Mary A. Bloxom. 

No tombstone has been found for John J. Bloxom, but Nary A. Bloxom, wife of 

John J. Bloxom, is buried at Bethel Church. Her stone states she was born 1 April 

1825 and died 2 May 1900. On 1 January 1901, Alfred D. Young and wife Susan J. 

joined Henry C. Marshall and wife Henrietta T.; Franklin P. Mears and wife Nary A.; 

and Nehemiah M. Bloxom and wife Sally L., 

J. Bundick for $1800 (Deeds 76, p. 230). 

Bloxom owned when she died and this would 

it. Asa J. Bundick bought an additional, 

in selling 69 acres near Nelsonia to Asa 

The deed states this was land Mary A. 

be her children and their spouses selling 

adjoining 19 acres from the same people 

on 29 July 1901 for $600 (Deeds 77, p. 85). 

On 2 January 1903, Susan J. Young, wife of Alfred D. Young, bought 34 acres, 

for $1075 from Nettie Mears and Albert T. Mears (Deeds 78, p. 746). This land was 

located near Bethel Church. It was bordered on the northeast by part of Burwell 

Gladding lots and Betsy Northam's heirs, on the southeast by Henry B. Northam, on 
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the south by the Charlotte Lewis farm, to a public road, then north along this road 

to a cart Road" around the William D. Gladding lot and in a northeast direction 

parallel with the NYFN railroad. 

Descendants of Alfred D. Young tell that his farm was the one near Years on 

which Garland Gladding presently lives. It is on route 687, just north of Wessells 

Cemetery, as this road continues to Hallwood. It appears to be the farm on which 

Alfred D. Young's father, David Young, was farming in 1850. While the present 

house, with a garage and other out-buildings across the road, is of more modern 

construction, there is a much older house on the farm, facing the road after it 

makes a right angle turn. There is a graveyard in the field across the road from 

it in which Northams are buried (no stones). 

On 22 October 1904, Alfred D. Young and wife Susan J., sold the northern part 

of their farm, to their son Frank P. Young for $400 (Deeds 82, p. 208). On 31 

December 1910, they sold the remaining 19 acres to Clarence L. Taylor for $3500 

(Deeds 96, p. 420). 

Family members tell that Alfred D. Young and his wife moved to Hallwood after 

their family was grown and they sold the farm. His obituary states he died of 

pneumonia on 30 April 1930, leaving a widow three daughters and four sons. 

According to it, he had been a mail carrier from Hallwood to Mappsville for many 

years and a member of Bethel Baptist Church for more than forty years. He was also 

a member of the Hallwood Council of the Junion Order of United American Mechanics. 

at 
His widow survived him by six years, dying on 7 August 1936,A the the home of their 

daughter, Mrs. Thomas Wessells, at Nearsville. Her tombstone, at Groton's Cem-

etery, shows she was born in 1851 also. 

The children of Alfred David Young and his wife, Susan Jane Bloxom Young, were: 

1. David Woodson Young, born 1875, died 30 September 1931, according to the 

family Bible and his tombstone at Wessells Cemetery. David W. Young, 21, married 

Mollie (Mary Susan) Byrd, 19, on 6 June 1897 at Bloxom (Mar. Reg. #4, p. 16). 
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Mollie Byrd was born in 1878 and died in 1962. This family lived at Mearsville and 

consisted of three children: Adele Young, married Herman T. Annis; Bessie Lee 

Young, married Orville W. McCready; and Charles Sanford Young (1897-1932). 

2. John T. Young, born ler, died 1944, according to his tombstone at Parks-

ley Cemetery. John T. Young, 23, married Sallie J. Wessells, 21, on 28 December 

1900, at Bloxom. She was the daughter of Arthur Wessells and wife Mary (Nar. Reg. 

#4, p. 56). She was born in 1876 and died in 1951. They lived at Bloxom and also 

had three children: Avalyn Young, married Edward Mears; Marie Young, married Joel 

Walker; and John Carroll Young of Guilford (b. 1902). 

3. Maggie Lee Young, born 1879. See next section. 

4. Ella Young, born 1881, died 1972, according to her tombstone at Wessells 

Cemetery. Ella Young, is, married, on 20 December 1895, Thomas J. Wessells (1876= 

1946). He was the son of William W. Wessells and wife Caroline. This couple had 

three children: Woodrow W. Wessells (1915-1954) of New Church; Ernest Wessells; 

and Stella Wessells, who married Herman Groton. 

5. Frank P:Young , born 1883, died 1934, according to his tombstone at 

Groton's Cemetery. Frank P. Young, 18, married Vicie Jester, 21, daughter of Elias 

and Alabama Jester, on 5 February 1901 (Nar. Reg. #4, p. 60). This family lived 

near Mears, on land he bought from his father in 1904. There were two children: 

Margaret Young, married Edward Middleton; and Warner F. Young (1904-1938). His 

obituary states there was also an adopted daughter, Flora Ellen Bernard. She 

would have been the daughter of Mary Susan Bernard (1888-1923), buried at Parks-

ley Cemetery, wife of Joseph A. Bernard (1884-1951), and sister to Vicie Jester 

Youngs who was born in 1878 and died in 1943. 

6. Lee W. Young, born 1889, died 1981, according to his tombstone in Parks-

ley Cemetery. Lee W. Young, married Lula C. Wessells(1890-1965) on 20 December 1909 

(dor. Co. Nar. Record 1906-1917, p. 176). She was a sister to his brother John T. 

Young's wife. The family lived at Bloxom and there were two children: Elizabeth 
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Young, married Marshall Merriel of Pocomoke; and Earl Young. 

7. Mollie F. Young, born 1892, died 1974, according to her tombstone in Gro-

ton's Cemetery. Mollie Young married circa 1912, Thomas U. Collins (1884-1955). 

They lived at hallwood and had two daughters: Winnie Young, married William H. 

Davis of Mappsville; and Doris Young, married Clarence Wright of Temperanceville. 
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Susan J. & Alfred D. Young 

Alfred D. Young & sons 

. Susan J. & Alfred D. Young 

Alfred D. Young, as a young man 

Left: Mr. & Mrs. Cleve Chesser 
Mr. & Mrs. Gordon T. Savage 
Mary Susan Savage - 
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Maggie Lee Young 

Maggie Lee Young was born on 19 May 1879 (family Bible) End died on 3 Septem-

ber 1940 (Peninsula interprise, September 13, 1940 issue). She was the oldest of 

three daughters of Alfred David Young and his wife, Susan Jane Bloxom Young. Maggie 

Lee Young married (1) on 22 December 1895, Milo Thomas Jester, son of Elias and 

Alabama Jester, and (2) on 7 August 1918, G. Cleveland Chesser (1884-1969), son of 

Sewell Chesser and his wife (Mar. Reg. #4, p. 260). Maggie Y. Chesser is buried in 

Groton's Cemetery beside her second husband. The tombstone for Milo T. Jester is 

also there, giving his birth on 15 August 1874 and death on 18 December 1913. He 

was buried in a plot with his parents. 

The obituary for one of her brothers in 1931 shows Maggie Chesser and her 

family living at iallwood, while another brother's obituary, in 1934, states the 

Cleve Chesser family was then living in Hebron, Maryland. Family members say he 

was employed at timber mills. 

Maggie Lee Young Jester Chesser had one daughter, born of her first marriage: 

1. Clara Susan Jester. See next section. 

36 



Maggie Lee Young 
in. (1) Milo T. Jester 

(2) G. Cleve Chesser 



Clara Susan Jester 

Clara Susan Jester, the only clild of Maggie Lee Young, born of her first 

marriage to Milo Thomas Jester, was born on 21 February 1897 and died on 12 July 

1984. She married (1) on 8 August 1913, Gordon T. Savage. Gordon T. Savage was 

born at Keller, Virginial on 19 August 1892, the oldest child of John Henry Savage 

and his wife Margaret Susan Bundick Savage. Gordon T. Savage worked for the 

Pennsylvania Railroad and the family moved often as he was transferred to dif-

ferent stations. He was assigned to the Hebron, Maryland, station in 1921. The 

family was living there when he and his wife divorced circa 1931. He moved to 

Baltimore, Maryland, remarried, and died there on 21 January 1972. Clara Jester 

Savage married (2) Martin Carey of Seaford, Delaware. They lived in Laurel, 

Delaware, until he did, when she moved back to Hebron. She is buried in Spring 

Hill Memorial Gardens, Salisbury, Maryland. 

Clara Susan Jester Savage Carey had one daughter: 

1. Mary Susan Savage, born 3 July 1915, married (1) 1 October 1934, Robert 

B. Bounds, who died of tuberculosis, (2) 10 June 1939, Watson T. Willey. Nary 

Susan Savage Willey has a son, Robert Dean Bounds, born 31 May 1938, and a dau-

ghter, Irene Louise Willey, born 1 March 1951, who married (1) 6 August 1971, 

James S. Donohoe, divorced (2) 17 June 1983, M. Carter Davis, Jr. Irene Willey 

Davis has a son, Jamison Todd Donohoe, born 10 August 1973. 
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Left: Clara Susan Jester 
;Left below: Gordon T. Savage 
,Above: Mary Susan Savage 
:Below: Mary Susan Savage Willey 
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YOUNG CHART I 

Samuel of 
North. Co. 
b.c. 1629 
d. after 1675 

Samuel II 
b.c. 1 
d.c. 1695 
m.o. 1675, Mary 

Mary m. (2) WM. 
Hudson 

Samuel 
b.c. 1675 
d.c. 1730 
unmarried 

William I 
b.c. 1676 
d.t. 1748 
m.c. 1697 
w. Patience 

Henry 
d. int. 1698 

Francis 
d. t. 1733 
w. Tabitha 

m. (2) 

(3) 

John 
b.c. 1705 
d. t. 1769 
m.c. 1730, Comfort 

William II 
b.c. 1710 
d. t. 1781 
m.c. 1734, Margaret 

Dutton 
Ann, m. 

Collins 
m.  

Jenkins 

Francis 
Stokley 
Robert 
Carruthers 

Ezekiel 
descendants in 
Wor. Co., Md.? 

John 
d. t. 1750 
w. Keziah 

Tabitha 

Elizabeth 

Wise (female) 

Thomas 

VlarY 

Ezekiel 
d. t. 1786 

Richard 
b.c. 1740 
d. int. 1805 
m. Ann Hastings 

William III 
b.c. 1745 
d. t. 1802 
m. 1775, Eliz. Crippen 
(see chart II) 

Ezekiel 
d.c. 1795 
unmarried 

James 
d. int. 1791 

George Hope 
m.c. 1775, Comfort 

Baker 
d. before 1798 

Thomas 
d.c. 1795 
w. Betty 

Ann, m. William Hope 
Savage 

Mary, m. Griffin 
Savage 



YOUNG CHART II 

William IT 
b.c. 1 d. 13 
m.c. 1800, Sally 

(Hinman?) 

William III 
b.c. 1745 
d.t. 1802 
m. 1775, Eliz. 

Crippen 
(from chart I) 

Robert 
b.c. 1778, d. 1848 
m. 1800, Rachel 

Rew 
(see chart III) 

Sarah 
deceased by 1809 

Leah 
m. 1807, David 

James 

James 
deceased by 1809 

Samuel 
moved to Washington 

Thomas 
moved to Washington 

Isaac 
d. 1826 
unmarried 

Richard 
b.c. 1805, d. 1888 
in. 1830, Mary/Polly Fisher 

(see chart IT) 

Dav'd 
b.c. 1810, d. 1853 
in. 1832, Margaret 

Wessells 

Na ry 
b.c. 1815 
m. 1837, Thomas 

Hinman 

Sarah 
b.c. 1817 
m. 1837, Epkraim 

Wes sells 
Hannah 
b.c. 1820 
m. 1840, George 

Clayton 

Ann 
b.c. 1821 
m. 1841, William 

Taylor 

izabeth 
b.c. 1825 
m.c. 1845, John E. 

Brodwa ter 

Isaac 
b. ?, deceased by 1843 
unmarried 

Mary 
b. 1833, d. 1873 
in. 1850, Richard R. 

Somers 

Benjamin F. 
b. 1836, d. 1927 
m. 1855, Elizabeth 

Northam 

William T. 
b. 1840, d. 1889 
m.c. 1865, Mary 

Lewis R. 
b. 1842, d. 1884 
m. 1866, Mary 

Bloxom 

Aifre. v• 
d. 1930 

m. 1874, Susan J. 
Bloxom 

David W. 
b. 1875, d. 1931 
m. 1897, Mollie 

Byrd 

John T. 
b. 1877, d. 1944 
in. 1900, Sallie J. 

Wes sells 

Maggie Lee 
b. 1879, d. 1940 
m. (1) 1895, Nib o T. 

Jester 
(2) 1918, Cleve 

Chesser 

Ella 
b. 1881, d. 1972 
m. 1896, Thomas J. 

Wess ells 

Frank P. 
b. 1883, d. 1934 
m. 1901, Vicie Jester 

Lee W. 
b. 1889, d. 1981 
in. 1909, Lula C. 

Wessells 

Molly F. 
b. 1892, d. 1974 
m.c. 1912, Thomas U. 

Collins 



YOUNG CHART III 

Robert 
b.c. 1778 
d.t. 1848 
m. 1800, Rachel 

Rew 
(from chart II) 

Robert, Jr. 
b.c. 1800, d.1848 
m. 1830, Aurelia 

Wessells 

Betsy 
b. 1802, d. 1886 
unmarried 

Gillett 
b.c. 18OIi, d.1 83I 
in. 1822, Catherine 

Wessells 

Shepherd 
b.c. 1810, d. 1835 
m. 1834, Betsy 

Bloxom 

Susan, m. 1865, George H. 
Young, son of 
Richard Polly 

Margaret T., m.(1) John E. Mears 
(2) Robert P. Guy 

Elizabeth, in. Wm. Annis 
Ephraim of Middlesex, VA 
John Gilly of Baltimore 
Jane, in.   Morris 

Samuel  of R. 
b.c. 1812, d. 1894 
in. 1837, Sally Wessells 

Peggy 
in. 1841, Capt. Selby 

Lankford 

Elizabeth 
in. 1890, George Tom. Ewell 

Georgianna 
unmarried in 1886 

Eveline 
in. 1848, George Middleton 

Margaret 
m. 1847, Wm. Thorns 

Samuel T. (of G) 
in. 1855, Rachel Mason 
d. 1876 at 42 

Shepherd 
b. 1835, d. 1870 
m. 1855, Sally Shrieves 

John Shephard 
b.c. 1839 
m. 1859, Susan Riggs 

Samuel T. 
b.c. 1840 
in. 1859, Margaret Mason 

Robert William 
b.c. 1814, d.1914 
m. 1874, Elizabeth S. 

Wessells 
Isaac Wesley 
b.c. 1851 
m. 1874, Louisa J. 

Linton 
Rachel A. 
b. 1848, d. 1883 

Mary J. K. 
m. Oliver Wessells 

Sallie F. D. 
in. 1875, Noah 

Fanton 
Margaret S. B. 
m.Augustus Ewell 

Littleton D. 
b.c. 1846, d. 1885 
m.c. 1872, Susan F. 

Middleton 
Francis 
d. young 
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ames R. 
b.c. 1860 
in. 1878, Maggie S. Matthews 

Richard 
b. 1805 
d. 1888 
in. 1830, Mary/Polly 

Fisher 
(from chart II) 

John W. b. 18 2 d. 1861 
In. 1 Susan yton 

George H. 
in. 18 

b. c. 1840 
Susan J. Young, 
dau. Robert and 
Aurella 

usan 
b.c. 1865 
in. Frank Matthews 

Isaac, b,c. 1845 
in. 1864, Sallie M. Ewell 

Robert J., b.c. 1867 

Mary A., b.c. 1869 

Richard, b.c. 1870 
in. 1891, Eliza Ellen Justice 

George R., b. 1870, d. 1971 
(dates from Graven Stones) 

Jesse D., b.c. 1873, d. 1904 

Laura S., b.c. 1876 

John G., b.c. 1879, d. 1903 

William M., b. 1881, d. 1940 

26 1912, Lola Lewis 

Arinthia b.c. 1882 

George Top b. 1866, d. 1908 
m. 1890, McCartie Lee Grey 

John, b. and d. 1872 

John, b. 1879, d. 1883 
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